
1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Salford Civic Centre 
SWINTON 

 

 

MEETING OF COUNCIL 
 

 
 
 

Dear City Mayor and Councillors, 
 

You are invited to attend the Meeting of Council to be held as follows for the 
transaction of the business indicated: - 
 
DATE: Thursday, 12 August 2021 
 
TIME:  10.00 am 

 
PLACE: 100 Embankment - Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ 

 

Councillors are requested to ensure that their electronic equipment is on silent 

during Council meetings. Approval is given to officers and councillors to use 

social media during the business of council, subject to the protocol and social 

media policy. 

 

 
A G E N D A 

 

 
 FACE TO FACE FORMAL COUNCIL MEETINGS FOR 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC FROM 7 MAY 2021  

 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

1   Any announcements or special business (including the 

submission of any urgent business) introduced by the 
Chair.  

 

 

2   Apologies for absence  

 
 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

3   Declaration of Interests  
 

Disclosure by Members of “Disclosable Pecuniary Interests” 
(as defined by The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012), and Members’ “Personal 

Interests” in accordance with paragraph 12.1 of Salford City 
Council’s Code of Conduct for Members.    

 

 

4   Senior Management Appointments  
 

 Monitoring Officer (City Solicitor) 

 Strategic Director Place 

 

(Pages 3 - 6) 



3 
 

 

Notes for Elected Members and Members of the Public 
 
(a) Addressing the Ceremonial Mayor during Council Meetings  

 
During Council meetings the City Mayor, Elected Members, Officers and members of 
the public shall address the Ceremonial Mayor as “Chair” when speaking at the 
Council meeting.  

 
(b) Points of Order and Personal Explanations 
 

a) If a Member or Officer stands on a point of order or to give a personal 
explanation: 
 

 the Member shall be heard immediately, and 

 any Member or Officer speaking shall sit down. 

 
b) A point of order shall relate only to an alleged irregularity in the constitution or 
conduct of the meeting, and the Member or Officer shall immediately give details of the 

allegation (if possible, identifying any Standing Order or statute considered to have 
been broken). 

 
c) A personal explanation shall only be to clear a misunderstanding of something 
said by the Member or Officer.  

 
d) The ruling of the Chair on a point of order or a personal explanation shall be at 

his or her discretion. 
 
 

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014’, 
the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record this meeting. 

 

 
 

David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer  



This page is intentionally left blank



The return to face to face council meetings from 7 th May 2021 
 
The temporary regulations enabling remote meetings expired on 7 May 2021 and the 

Government now requires meetings of the full council, Cabinet, committees, panels 
and boards (that are open to the public) to be held in public so members of the public 
can attend in person. 

 
A tremendous effort has gone into trying to ensure that any council meetings taking 

place in person will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment.  Your safety is our 
utmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective 
decision making. 

The venue for face to face meetings 
All the formal council meetings from 5th July will take place at 100 Embankment, 

Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ, as this is the most appropriate, suitably sized 

venue available to the city council, where meetings can take place in a COVID-secure 
way.  

COVID-secure face to face meetings 

Listed below are some of the control measures that we have had to put in place at the 

meetings to minimise the risk of the transmission of the virus.  It is very important that 
all persons attending the meetings comply with the following:   
 

1. Please arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 
controlled access to the building and meeting space. 

2. A marshal will be onsite to greet you and will escort you to the meeting. 
3. The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the principle 

of ‘hands, face and space’. Therefore, you are asked to regularly wash and sanitise 

your hands, wear a face covering at all times unless you hold a medical exemption, 
and please maintain a two metre distance from others at all times whilst in the 

building. 
4. Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum with 

pre-defined entrances and exits (the marshal onsite will cover this in more detail 

with you when you arrive). 
5. A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 

complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the meeting 
and on the morning of the meeting:  

 

 You can collect or order the home testing kits by: 
o Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home 

o Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point 
 

 If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting  
under no circumstances should you attend, please email your apologies to 

Democratic Services at decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

 

 If your lateral flow test is positive you will then need to book a complementary 

PCR Test and follow national guidance on self-isolating.   
 

6. Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 

residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you the 
risk is higher, particularly if… 

 you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if you are at significant risk 

Page 1

Agenda Annex

https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/how-to-get-tested/book-a-free-rapid-coronavirus-test/
mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test


 you have one or more health conditions as a number of risk factors may interact 

as well as health conditions. 
 

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if either 

of the above applies to you, before you make a decision about attending a face to 

face meeting.   

Travelling to 100 Embankment 

 By foot: A range of walking routes are available. 

 By train: Manchester Victoria Railway Station is a couple of minutes’ walk 

from 100 Embankment. 

 By car: Q-Park Deansgate North, 2 Chapel Street, Manchester, M3 7WJ, is 

located underneath the Embankment development. Parking can be pre-
booked on the website below. 

 
 Deansgate North Parking | Manchester Car Parks | Q-Park 

 
 

Page 2

https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/


 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF 

 The City Mayor 

 

TO 

Council 

ON  

12th August 2021

 

TITLE: Appointment of Monitoring Officer (City Solicitor) and Strategic Director Place 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
That Council: 

1. Approve the appointment of the successful candidate to the post of City 

Solicitor and Monitoring Officer, and a formal offer be confirmed.  
2. Note the appointment of the successful candidate to the post of Strategic 

Director Place. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

At the meeting of the Workforce Panel on 25th May 2021 the approach and process 

for the recruitment, selection and appointment to the posts of City Solicitor, a post 

which is also the statutory Monitoring Officer, and the Strategic Director Place were 

agreed.  The Appointment Panel for each post was established by the Workforce 

Panel to appoint a suitable candidate, with the Monitoring Officer appointment 

subject to ratification by the full Council. 

 
 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

Workforce Panel report 25th May 2021 

Council report 21st July 2021 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 2 

KEY DECISION: NO 

 

 

DETAILS: 

 

1. Appointment of Monitoring Officer 

 

At the meeting of the Workforce Panel on 25th May 2021 an Appointment Panel for 
the City Solicitor, a post which is also the statutory Monitoring Officer, was 

established as follows: - 

 City Mayor 

 Lead Member for Finance and Support Services  

 Executive Support Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations 

 Leader of the Opposition or nominated representative 

 

The Appointment Panel agreed the role description and the advertising campaign for 
the post.  The Appointment Panel then went on to agree a shortlist of suitable 

candidates to progress through the selection process. 
 
The selection process was designed to be robust and rigorous involving a series of 

assessments measuring the skills, knowledge, experience and behaviours of each 
candidate.  This final part of the assessment process included the City Mayor and 

members, the Chief Executive and the corporate management team.   
 
Following completion of this rigorous selection process on Thursday 29th July, the 

unanimous decision of the Appointment Panel was to appoint Iolanda Puzio who is 
currently employed by Cumbria County Council as Chief Legal Officer and Monitoring 

Officer. 
 
The Proper Officer has received no objections to the appointment being made.  In 

line with the Council Constitution, Officer Employment Procedure Rules prior to the 
formal offer of appointment being confirmed it is a requirement that the decision be 
approved by the Council.   

 
2. Appointment of Strategic Director Place 

 

At the meeting of the Workforce Panel on 25th May 2021 an Appointment Panel for 
the Strategic Director Place was established as follows: - 

 City Mayor 

 Statutory Deputy City Mayor (Portfolio lead for Housing, Property and 

Regeneration) 

 Lead Member for Environment, Neighbourhoods and Community Safety  

 Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development 

 Executive Support Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations 

 Leader of the Opposition or nominated representative 

 

Page 4



 3 

The Appointment Panel agreed the role description and the advertising campaign for 
the post.  The Appointment Panel then went on to agree a shortlist of suitable 
candidates to progress through the selection process. 

 
The selection process was designed to be robust and rigorous involving a series of 

assessments measuring the skills, knowledge, experience, and behaviours of each 
candidate.  This assessment process included participation from elected members, 
the Chief Executive, corporate management team, staff and key partners and 

stakeholders from across the City.   
 

Following completion of a rigorous selection process on Tuesday 3rd August, the 
Appointment Panel reached the unanimous decision to make an offer of 
appointment.  The Proper Officer has received no objections to the appointment 

being made and a formal offer is being confirmed. Following completion of the 
appointment process details of the successful candidate will be provided to the 

special meeting of Council on 12th August. 
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Salford City Council Constitution 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

The recruitment, selection and appointment process has been undertaken in a lawful, 
fair, transparent and consistent manner in line with our recruitment and selection and 

equal opportunities policies, commitments and frameworks.  
 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: N/A 

 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: David Wilcock, Interim City Solicitor 

 

The appointment of City Solicitor is made in accordance with the decision of Workforce 
Panel taken on 25th May 2021.  The appointment of the Monitoring Officer is a function 

reserved to Council.  
 
In line with the Council Constitution - Officer Employment Rules - the Proper Officer 

has followed due process and no objections to the appointments being made have 
been received. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Hesketh, Head of Financial 

Management 

 
The costs of these positions will be met from within the existing budget.  Therefore, 

there are no financial consequences arising from the report. 

Page 5



 4 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  

Are contained within the body of the report. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

N/A 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Samantha Betts, Assistant Director HR & OD 

E-mail Samantha.betts@salford.gov.uk  
 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 

N/A 

Page 6

mailto:Samantha.betts@salford.gov.uk

	Agenda
	 face to face formal council meetings for members of the public from 7 May 2021
	4 Senior Management Appointments

